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1 EXAMINER WARNELL: That b r i n g s us t o case Number 

2 14584, A p p l i c a t i o n of EOG Resources I n c . f o r an order 

3 a u t h o r i z i n g the d r i l l i n g of w e l l s i n the Potash Area, Eddy 

4 County, New Mexico. 

5 C a l l f o r appearances. 

6 MS. MUNDS-DRY: Ocean Munds-Dry, w i t h the law f i r m 

7 of Hol l a n d and Hart LLP. I represe n t EOG Resources 

8 I n c o r p o r a t e d , and I have f o u r witnesses t h i s morning. 

9 EXAMINER WARNELL: Four witnesses. I f the witnesses 

10 c o u l d come up f r o n t so the c o u r t r e p o r t e r can --

11 EXAMINER BROOKS: Nobody r e p r e s e n t i n g Potash? 

12 EXAMINER WARNELL: She smi l e s . Please s t a t e your 

13 names. 
14 MR. HURLBUT: Douglas W. H u r i b u t 

15 MR. GLANTON: Don Glanton. 

16 MR. MUNSELL: Steve Munsell. 

17 MR. Siepens: Jay Siepens. 

18 (Witnesses d u l y sworn.) 

19 MS. MUNDS-DRY: With your permission, Mr. Examiner, 

20 I w i l l c a l l Mr. H u r i b u t . 

21 DOUGLAS W. HURLBUT 

22 (Having been sworn, t e s t i f i e d as f o l l o w s : ) 

23 DIRECT EXAMINATION 

24 BY MS. MUNDS-DRY: 

25 Q. Would you please s t a t e your f u l l name f o r the 
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2 A. Douglas W. H u r i b u t . 

3 Q. Where do you reside? , 

4 A. Midland, Texas. 

5 Q. By whom are you employed? 

6 A. EOG Resources, I n c . 

7 Q • 
i 

How are you employed? 

8 A. As a petroleum landman. \ 

9 Q- Have you p r e v i o u s l y t e s t i f i e d b e f o r e t h i s d i v i s i o n ? 

10 A. Yes, I have. 

11 Q. Were your c r e d e n t i a l s reviewed and accepted as a 

12 matter of record? 

13 A. Yes, they have been. 

14 Q. Are you f a m i l i a r w i t h the a p p l i c a t i o n s or the 

15 a p p l i c a t i o n t h a t EOG has f i l e d ? j 

16 A. Yes, I am. j 

17 Q. Are you f a m i l i a r w i t h t he s t a t u s of lan d i n the j 

18 subj ect area? j 

19 A. Yes, I am. 

20 MS. MUNDS-DRY: Mr. Warnell, we tender Mr. Hu r i b u t | 

21 as an expert i n petroleum l a n d m a t t e r s . 

22 EXAMINER WARNELL: So recognized. 

23 Q- Mr. H u r i b u t , would you b r i e f l y s t a t e f o r the j 

24 Examiner what you seek from t h i s a p p l i c a t i o n ? | 

25 A. Well, approval t o d r i l l a Parkway 23, State Com Well j 
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1 Number 2H the 3H and also the Parkway 23 State Well Number 

2 4H. 

3 Q. I s t h i s area where EOG has proposed t o d r i l l these 

4 wells i n the potash area as defined by ROLMD? 

5 A. Yes, they are. 

6 Q. Would you please t u r n t o what's been marked as EOG 

7 E x h i b i t Number 1 and review t h a t f o r the examiners. 

8 A. This i s a p l a t t h a t b a s i c a l l y shows our Section 23, 

9 Section 23 of 19 South, 2 9 East, Eddy County. And t h i s i s a 

10 st a t e section comprised of the federal state leases, and we 

11 are the operator of the m a j o r i t y of a l l the lands i n t h a t 

12 section. 

13 Q. I s there a j o i n t operating agreement i n place i n 

14 t h i s section? 

15 A. Yes, there i s . 

16 Q. Is EOG the operator? 

17 A. Yes, ma'am. 

18 Q. I s there any potash leases t h a t you're aware of i n 

19 t h a t section? 

2 0 A. There are no potash leases. I n f a c t , t h a t yellow 

21 l i n e , I had checked a l l t h a t , and there are no potash leases 

22 w i t h i n t h a t nine sections. 

23 Q. So there are no potash leases w i t h i n a mile? 

24 A. Correct. 

25 Q. I s there a potash mine i n tha t section? 
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1 A. Well, appears t o be one t h a t was an o l d abandoned 

2 mine. 

3 Q. Do you happen t o know the name of t h a t potash mine? 

4 I t h i n k i t has s e v e r a l names. 

5 A. I can't remember what the name of i t i s . 

6 Q. I s i t the HB Mine? Does t h a t r i n g a b e l l ? I f you 

7 don't know, t h a t ' s f i n e . 

8 A. No. 

9 Q. I f you would review f o r the examiners the o i l and 

10 gas development t h a t i s t a k i n g place i n Se c t i o n 23. 

11 A. Okay. There are c u r r e n t l y a couple o f w e l l s t h a t 

12 are producing i n t h a t s e c t i o n . There i s a Chi-operated w e l l 

13 t h a t ' s i n the northwest c o r r i d o r of the southeast c o r r i d o r . 

14 I t ' s Bone Springs t e s t , and t h e r e i s a w e l l t h a t EOG d r i l l e d 

15 back about 2004, and the surfac e l o c a t i o n i s i n the Northeast 

16 C o r r i d o r of the Southwest C o r r i d o r , and i t ' s a d i r e c t i o n a l 

17 d r i l l down t o the morrow, and the bottomhole i s over t h e r e on 

18 the southeast o f the northwest c o r r i d o r . That's c u r r e n t l y 

19 producing. 

20 Q. And are t h e r e any i n a c t i v e or plugged w e l l s ? 

21 A. Yeah. There i s a -- a PNA w e l l t h a t ' s l o c a t e d i n 

22 the Northwest C o r r i d o r of the Southwest C o r r i d o r . 

23 Q. Now, i n d i c a t e d on here, Mr. H u r i b u t , I b e l i e v e t h e r e 

24 are t h r e e h o r i z o n t a l w e l l s . Are those the t h r e e w e l l s t h a t 

25 are the s u b j e c t of EOG's a p p l i c a t i o n ? 
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1 A. Cor r e c t . 

2 Q. And as t o EOG's e x h i b i t i n g a c t i v e w e l l s t o the 

3 morrow, would t h a t w e l l -- d i d t h a t b e n e f i t from a waiver 

4 from a potash company? 

5 A. Yes, i t d i d . 

6 Q. Who who g r a n t e d t h a t waiver? 

7 A. I t h i n k i t was I n t r e p i d . 

8 Q. And what about the potash development i n t h i s area? 

9 I b e l i e v e you s a i d t h a t t h e r e i s an abandoned mine? 

10 A. Co r r e c t . There i s an abandoned mine, and t h e r e i s , 

11 you know -- and I understand from o t h e r people t a l k i n g t h a t 

12 t h e r e -- t h a t t he -- I guess the mine where I n t r e p i d ' s 

13 i n t e n t i o n i s t o do a s o l u t i o n mine on some of t h i s acreage on 

14 or i n the o l d mine area a t some time. I don't know, because 

15 nobody knows a n y t h i n g about i t r e a l l y . 

16 Q. Okay. I f you t u r n , Mr. H u r i b u t , t o what's been 

17 marked as E x h i b i t Number 2. I s t h i s the n o t i c e packet 

18 i n c l u d i n g the a f f i d a v i t of n o t i c e , the l e t t e r t h a t was sent 

19 t o I n t r e p i d g i v i n g them n o t i c e of t h i s h e a r i n g , along w i t h 

20 the green car d showing the evidence of the m a i l i n g and the 

21 a f f i d a v i t of p u b l i c a t i o n ? 

22 A. Yes, i t i s . 

23 Q. Were E x h i b i t s 1 and 2 e i t h e r prepared by you or 

24 compiled under your d i r e c t i o n and super v i s i o n ? 

25 A. Yes, they were. 
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1 MS. MUNDS-DRY: Mr. Examiner, we move the admission 

2 of E x h i b i t s 1 and 2 i n t o evidence. 

3 EXAMINER WARNELL: E x h i b i t s 1 and 2 are adm i t t e d . 

4 ( E x h i b i t s 1 and 2 o f f e r e d and admitted.) 

5 MS. MUNDS-DRY: And I have n o t h i n g f u r t h e r f o r 

6 Mr. H u r i b u t . 

7 EXAMINER WARNELL: Thank you. Mr. Brooks? 

8 EXAMINER BROOKS: No qu e s t i o n s . 

9 EXAMINATION 

10 BY EXAMINER WARNELL: 

11 Q. Mr. Huri b u t ? 

12 A. Yes, s i r . 

13 Q. Kind of a general q u e s t i o n , I guess. I'm s u r p r i s e d 

14 t h a t I n t r e p i d i s n ' t here. Have th e y expressed agreement w i t h 

15 t h i s or disagreement or have --

16 A. Well, t h a t --

17 Q. Have they expressed --

18 A. -- d i s c u s s i o n i s going t o come next, I t h i n k . Donny 

19 Glanton i s here. 

2 0 Q. I don't want t o s t e a l your thunder. I'm s o r r y . 

21 MS. MUNDS-DRY: Mr. Glanton has a l l the answers t o 

22 your q u e s t i o n s . 

23 THE WITNESS: He i s the one t h a t ' s been i n 

24 correspondence w i t h them, Donny has. 

25 EXAMINER WARNELL: A l l r i g h t . Very good. Well then 
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1 l e t ' s l e t the case take i t s course. I have no questions. 

2 THE WITNESS: Okay. 

3 MS. MUNDS-DRY: With t h a t , we c a l l Donny Glanton. 

4 DON G. GLANTON 

5 (Having been sworn, t e s t i f i e d as f o l l o w s : ) 

6 DIRECT EXAMINATION 

7 BY MS. MUNDS-DRY: 

8 Q. Good morning. 

9 A. Good morning. 

10 Q. Would you please s t a t e your f u l l name f o r the 

11 record? 

12 A. I t ' s Don G. Glanton. G-l-a-n-t-o-n. 

13 Q. And where do you r e s i d e , Mr. Glanton? 

14 A. Midland, Texas. 

15 Q. By whom are you employed? 

16 A. EOG Resources. 

17 Q. What do you do f o r EOG? 

18 A. My t i t l e i s s e n i o r lease o p e r a t i o n s r i g h t - o f - w a y 

19 r e p r e s e n t a t i v e . My p r i m a r y r e s p o n s i b i l i t i e s are I handle 

20 l i k e s u r f a c e a c t i v i t i e s f o r the company r e l a t e d t o o i l and 

21 gas development, such as e s t a b l i s h i n g l o c a t i o n s , s e c u r i n g 

22 r i g h t - o f - w a y s , those m a t t e r s . And a t the time t h a t t h i s 

23 business was t a k i n g p l ace, I was a l s o f i l i n g a p p l i c a t i o n s f o r 

24 p e r m i t s t o d r i l l . 

25 Q. Mr. Glanton, have you p r e v i o u s l y t e s t i f i e d b e f o r e 

Jl 
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1 the D i v i s i o n ? . 

2 A. No, I have n o t . 

3 Q. Would you please review your education and work 

4 h i s t o r y ? 

5 A. Okay. I attended one c o l l e g e i n Weatherford, Texas, 

6 Texas A&M U n i v e r s i t y i n College S t a t i o n . I d i d not o b t a i n an 

7 undergraduate degree. I entered i n t o t he o i l and gas 

8 business i n 1981 w i t h M i t c h e l l Energy i n t h e i r l a n d 

9 department and worked w i t h M i t c h e l l t hrough 88 i n t h e i r l a n d 

10 department, as w e l l as t h e i r lease o p e r a t i o n s department. I n 

11 88 I e x i t e d the o i l and gas i n d u s t r y and went i n t o some o t h e r 

12 l i n e s o f work. And then i n 95 I came back i n t o the o i l and 

13 gas i n d u s t r y . When I moved t o Midland, Texas, I became a 

14 p a r t owner of a company i n Midland. I n 97 we s o l d t h a t --

15 t h a t business, and then I went t o work f o r an e n t i t y c a l l e d 

16 A l t u r a Energy i n t h e i r l a n d department i n 97. A l t u r a , i n 

17 2000, was a c q u i r e d by O c c i d e n t a l Petroleum. I worked w i t h 

18 O c c i d e n t a l Petroleum i n t h e i r l a n d department, and t h a t was 

19 u n t i l 2005. At t h a t time I was h i r e d by EOG t o work i n t h e i r 

2 0 lan d department under the r e s p o n s i b i l i t i e s I d escribed 

21 p r e v i o u s l y . 

22 Q. And, Mr. Glanton, are you the one i n f a c t who i s 

23 r e s p o n s i b l e f o r f i l i n g the APDs f o r these a p p l i c a t i o n s i n 

24 t h i s case? 

25 A. Yes. 
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1 MS. MUNDS-DRY: Mr. Warnell, we would tender 

2 Mr. Glanton as an expe r t i n lease o p e r a t i o n s and o i l and gas 

3 p e r m i t t i n g i ssues. 

4 EXAMINER WARNELL: So recognized. 

5 Q. Mr. Glanton, i f you would please t u r n t o EOG E x h i b i t 

6 Number 3, i d e n t i f y and review t h i s s et of documents f o r the 

7 examiners. 

8 A. Okay. This document i s the approved -- the 

9 d i v i s i o n - a p p r o v e d APD a s s o c i a t e d w i t h t h e Parkway 23 State 

10 Com 2H, along w i t h t h e -- w i t h the C-102 which describes the 

11 w e l l l o c a t e d as being i n the n o r t h h a l f / n o r t h h a l f of t h a t 

12 s e c t i o n . 

13 Q. And i s t h i s w e l l , has i t been proposed as a standard 

14 bottomhole l o c a t i o n ? 

15 A. Yes. 

16 Q. And l e t ' s t u r n t o E x h i b i t Number 4. What i s t h i s 

17 document, set of documents? 

18 A. E x h i b i t Number 4 i s the approved, d i v i s i o n - a p p r o v e d 

19 APD f o r the Parkway 23 State Com 3H. Attached w i t h i t i s the 

20 C-102 d e s c r i b i n g the ded i c a t e d acreage as being t he south 

21 h a l f o f the n o r t h h a l f . 

22 Q. And again, has t h i s w e l l been proposed as a standard 

23 bottomhole l o c a t i o n ? 

24 A. Yes. 

25 Q. And what i s EOG E x h i b i t Number 5? 
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1 A. E x h i b i t 5 would be the d i v i s i o n - a p p r o v e d APD f o r the 

2 Parkway 23 State 4H along w i t h the C-102 d e p i c t i n g the 

3 de d i c a t e d acreage as being the south h a l f / s o u t h h a l f of 

4 S e c t i o n 23. 

5 Q. And what i s the pr i m a r y o b j e c t i v e o f a l l t h r e e of 

6 the proposed w e l l s ? 

7 A. Be the Bone Spring. 

8 Q. And when d i d you f i l e these a p p l i c a t i o n s f o r p e r m i t s 

9 t o d r i l l ? 

10 A. These were f i l e d J u l y 29, 2009. 

11 Q. And you re f e r e n c e i n your testimony, Mr. Glanton, 

12 t h a t a l l of these APDs have been approved? 

13 A. Co r r e c t . 

14 Q. A f t e r you f i l e d these APDs or a f t e r you saw t h a t 

15 t h e y were approved, d i d you have a d i s c u s s i o n w i t h the 

16 d i s t r i c t o f f i c e r e g a r d i n g t he process t o be f o l l o w e d i n 

17 R - l l l - B ? 

18 A. Yes. Yes, I d i d . Just k i n d of i n an abundance of 

19 c a u t i o n , I contacted the d i s t r i c t o f f i c e concerning the 

2 0 approval t o get more i n f o r m a t i o n from them w i t h t he knowledge 

21 a t the time they were f i l e d t h a t we were w e l l w i t h i n the 

22 R - l l l - B boundary. 

23 Q. And d i d you discuss a t t h a t time t h a t you b e l i e v e 

24 n o t i c e needed t o be sent t o any potash companies t h a t had 

25 leases w i t h i n a m i l e and a l s o t o the State Land O f f i c e and 

PAUL BACA PROFESSIONAL COURT REPORTERS 
4b11 d952-48b5-427b-857d-b62656113f 1 b 



Page 13 

1 the BLM? 

2 A. That i s c o r r e c t . That d i s c u s s i o n was had, and the 

3 State -- excuse me -- the d i s t r i c t o f f i c e d i d i n i t i a t e t h a t 

4 a c t i o n . 

5 Q. And d i d you n o t i f y any potash companies pursuant t o 

6 our --

7 A. I d i d , by c e r t i f i e d m a i l , we contacted -- because of 

8 the knowledge t h e r e wasn't any potash leases i n t h a t area, we 

9 contacted b o t h major p l a y e r s i n the southeast being -- Mosaic 

10 being one and I n t r e p i d b e i n g t he o t h e r . 

11 Q. And what i s EOG E x h i b i t Number 6? 

12 A. E x h i b i t Number 6 would be a l e t t e r t o IMC Potash 

13 t h a t was sent t o them which b a s i c a l l y set out an e x p l a n a t i o n 

14 of what we were -- what we were p l a n n i n g and proposing i n 

15 Se c t i o n 23. There was a s i m i l a r l e t t e r sent a s s o c i a t e d w i t h 

16 a l l t h r e e w e l l s , so the i n d i v i d u a l l e t t e r f o r a l l t h r e e w e l l s 

17 t h a t was mailed t o IMC t o e x p l a i n our p r o j e c t . 

18 Q. And d i d you a l s o send t h i s same l e t t e r t o Mosaic? 

19 A. Yes. Yes, we d i d . 

20 Q. And --

21 EXAMINER WARNELL: Question, excuse me. 

22 MS. MUNDS-DRY: Yes, Mr. Warnell? 

2 3 EXAMINER WARNELL: IMC i s now I n t r e p i d ? 

24 MS. MUNDS-DRY: Yeah. 
25 A. Well, I b e l i e v e t h a t ' s i n c o r r e c t . I b e l i e v e IMC i s 
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1 a c t u a l l y Mosaic. I b e l i e v e . 

2 Q. Oh, okay. 

3 A. I f you look a t Mosaic's l e t t e r , which i s the next 

4 e x h i b i t , they -- they e x p l a i n they are f o r m e r l y IMC Potash. 

5 Q. So IMC i s now Mosaic? 

6 A. That's c o r r e c t . I may have made t h a t c o n f u s i o n i n 

7 our p r e v i o u s d i s c u s s i o n . 

8 Q. And so then l e t me make sure then, t o c l a r i f y f o r 

9 the r e c o r d then, a s i m i l a r l e t t e r then was sent t o 

10 I n t r e p i d ? 

11 A. That i s c o r r e c t . 

12 Q. For a l l t h r e e o f the w e l l s ? 

13 A. That i s c o r r e c t . 

14 Q. And then what i s E x h i b i t Number 7? 

15 A. E x h i b i t 7 i s a l e t t e r back from Mosaic, which you 

16 can see they recognize the r e c e i p t o f a p p l i c a t i o n from us 

17 r e l a t e d t o our t h r e e w e l l p r o p o s a l s . And b a s i c a l l y they 

18 responded t h a t they had no s t a n d i n g i n t h i s p a r t i c u l a r 

19 township, and t h a t i t would p r o b a b l y b e t t e r serve t o contact 

20 I n t r e p i d f o r t h e i r response. 

21 Q. Okay. And then what i s E x h i b i t Number 8? 

22 A. E x h i b i t 8 would be the I n t r e p i d response. Again, 

23 t h e i r response b a s i c a l l y s a i d t h a t they d i d o b j e c t t o our 

24 d r i l l i n g of the w e l l s due t o t h e i r reason o f us being l o c a t e d 

25 a q u a r t e r m i l e t o open mine workings i n measured ore, and 
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1 t h a t would be t h e i r response concerning a l l t h r e e w e l l 

2 l o c a t i o n s . 

3 Q. Okay. And a f t e r you r e c e i v e d t h i s l e t t e r from 

4 I n t r e p i d , d i d you have any f u r t h e r c o n t a c t w i t h anyone a t 

5 I n t r e p i d ? 

6 A. We d i d . L a t e r we a c t u a l l y drove -- "we" being 

7 myself and our l a n d manager, P a t r i c k Tower, and Mr. J. 

8 Siepens, who i s here t o t e s t i f y , met w i t h a mine engineer, 

9 Tom McGuire, w i t h I n t r e p i d , on March 3 0 and discussed our 

10 plans of development i n Section 23. 

11 Q. And so you presented your proposed w e l l d u r i n g t h a t 

12 meeting t o Mr. McGuire? 

13 A. We d i d . 

14 Q. And what happened d u r i n g those discussions? What 

15 d i d you l e a r n from Mr. McGuire? 

16 A. Well, Mr. McGuire, we sat down w i t h him and l a i d our 

17 maps out and k i n d o f showed him what we are proposing w i t h 

18 our h o r i z o n t a l w e l l s . His comment which, stuck w i t h us, i s 

19 t h a t any plans t h a t they would have i n the f u t u r e t o conduct 

2 0 any mining a c t i v i t i e s , such as s o l u t i o n mining of t h a t 

21 abandoned mine, would not be a f f e c t e d by our p r o p o s a l , t h a t 

22 our w e l l l o c a t i o n s were l o c a t e d up-dip of t h a t mine. 

23 So we f e l t t h a t was v e r y encouraging news r e l a t e d t o 

24 the f a c t t h a t we knew t h a t they were c o n s i d e r i n g the s o l u t i o n 

25 mining e f f o r t . 

.•••i-.ti.Mm>:.-*viiiiii: 
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1 Q. Based on t h a t c o n v e r s a t i o n , then, i f you co u l d t u r n 

2 t o what's been marked as EOG E x h i b i t Number 9 and i d e n t i f y 

3 and review t h i s document. 

4 A. R i g h t . You know, i n our d i s c u s s i o n s , i n our 

5 meetings, you know, we have e x p l a i n e d we d i d not r e c e i v e the 

6 waiver from the c o r p o r a t e o f f i c e , and t h a t we discussed how 

7 we c o u l d secure t h a t waiver. And Mr. McGuire t o l d us, he 

8 s a i d , "Why don't you go ahead and resubmit t h a t l e t t e r , t h a t 

9 waiver l e t t e r , but send i t t o my a t t e n t i o n , and then I w i l l 

10 v i s i t w i t h the a p p r o p r i a t e o f f i c i a l s i n t h e i r c o r p o r a t e 

11 o f f i c e t o discuss our pr o p o s a l . " 

12 Q. And i s E x h i b i t Number 9 then the copy of the l e t t e r 

13 t h a t you sent t o Mr. McGuire? 

14 A. That i s c o r r e c t . 

15 Q. And again you are j u s t asking f o r t h e i r consent t o 

16 d r i l l these w e l l s ? 

17 A. Ri g h t . 

18 Q. And then once you r e c e i v e d t h i s l e t t e r , what was 

19 I n t r e p i d ' s response a t t h a t p o i n t ? 

20 A. At some p o i n t t h e r e a f t e r I r e c e i v e d a co n t a c t c a l l 

21 from a landman w i t h I n t r e p i d named K a t i e K e l l e r . And 

22 b a s i c a l l y she wanted t o ask me questions about our leasehold, 

23 and why we p i c k e d those l o c a t i o n s , and t h a t she was going t o 

24 prepare something and m a i l t o me. And one of the t h i n g s t h a t 

25 she discussed i s t h a t t h i s waiver t h a t t h e y may be w i l l i n g t o 
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1 g r a n t may be c o n d i t i o n e d on us moving our l o c a t i o n s and 

2 s i g n i n g a l e t t e r which they prepared r e g a r d i n g the s o l u t i o n 

3 mining p r o j e c t . 

4 Q. And d i d she send t h a t l e t t e r or t h a t i n f o r m a t i o n t o 

5 you? 

6 A. Yes, t h a t -- t h a t came l a t e r by e-mail, which d i d --

7 i t set out b a s i c a l l y t h a t understanding. They had proposed 

8 some a l t e r n a t e l o c a t i o n s f o r a l l t h r e e w e l l l o c a t i o n s , and 

9 then t h e y had d r a f t e d a l e t t e r f o r us t o consider s i g n i n g on 

10 b e h a l f o f t h e i r s o l u t i o n mining group. 

11 Q. And once you r e c e i v e d t h a t i n f o r m a t i o n , d i d EOG 

12 review t he proposed waiver l e t t e r from I n t r e p i d and the 

13 a l t e r n a t i v e l o c a t i o n s ? 

14 A. Yes. Yes. I met w i t h the team, and we discussed 

15 o b v i o u s l y t h e l o c a t i o n s , and the n a d d i t i o n a l l y t h e l e t t e r , so 

16 t h i s was discussed w i t h our team. 

17 Q. And what d i d EOG decide t o do w i t h t h a t proposal 

18 from I n t r e p i d ? 

19 A. The d e c i s i o n was t h a t a couple of the l o c a t i o n s --

20 and Mr. Siepens, who w i l l be our witness f o l l o w i n g me, has 

21 more e x p l a n a t i o n s on the w e l l l o c a t i o n s h i f t s , but a couple 

22 of l o c a t i o n s , extreme n o r t h , extreme south c o u l d be a d j u s t e d 

23 as per t h e i r recommendation. The w e l l i n the middle, the 3H 

24 w e l l , t h e i r proposal would not work w i t h our planned 

25 development, and o b v i o u s l y t he l e t t e r which they had p r o v i d e d 
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1 us would be something t h a t we would not be w i l l i n g t o s i g n . 

2 Q. Okay. So a t t h a t -- a t t h a t time, d i d EOG pursue 

3 these APDs, or d i d you -- d i d you move on t o o t h e r t h i n g s ? 

4 A. Yeah. B a s i c a l l y , you know, we had o t h e r p r o j e c t s 

5 working, and our emphasis s h i f t e d a d i f f e r e n t d i r e c t i o n , so 

6 t h i s was k i n d of put back on the backburner, and a t t h a t time 

7 t h a t was the d e c i s i o n we made. 

8 Q. Okay. Let's back up t o the -- we were d i s c u s s i n g 

9 e a r l i e r your c o n v e r s a t i o n w i t h t he d i s t r i c t o f f i c e . 

10 A. Yes. 

11 Q. And you were -- you were concerned about the R - l l l 

12 procedures being followed? 

13 A. Uh-huh. 

14 Q. And was i t your understanding t h a t the d i s t r i c t 

15 o f f i c e then a l s o contacted the Bureau of Land Management and 

16 State Land O f f i c e t o n o t i f y them of these a p p l i c a t i o n s ? 

17 A. Yes. 

18 Q. And t o determine whether they were i n LMR or b u f f e r 

19 zone? 

20 A. Yes. 

21 Q. And l e t ' s go ahead then and look a t E x h i b i t 

22 Number 10. 

23 A. Okay. 

24 Q. What are these documents? 

2 5 A. This i s the response from b o t h the State and the BLM 
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1 w i t h respect t o our proposed l o c a t i o n s responding t o the 

2 i n q u i r y about the b u f f e r zone and the LMR. 

3 Q. And so each of these documents then i s f o r the 2H, 

4 3H, and 4H, from the State Land O f f i c e and the Bureau of Land 

5 Management? 

6 A. Yes. 

7 Q. And what d i d the St a t e Land O f f i c e i n d i c a t e as t o 

8 the 2H, 3H, and 4H? 

9 A. Well, the State Land O f f i c e response i s t h a t -- and 

10 you guys can look -- but b a s i c a l l y t h e i r response was t h a t we 
11 were i n the LMR on the 4H w e l l and the 3H w e l l , and not i n 

12 the LMR on the 2H w e l l . And then t h e y checked the answer on 

13 o n l y the 2H w e l l t h a t we were -- t h a t , yes, we were i n s i d e 

14 the b u f f e r zone. 

15 Q.. Okay. And what d i d the BLM say about the --

16 A. The BLM's response f o r a l l t h r e e w e l l l o c a t i o n s were 

17 the same i n t h a t we were not i n the LMR and we were not i n 

18 the b u f f e r zone. 

19 Q. So a t t h i s p o i n t does EOG know w i t h c e r t a i n t y 

2 0 whether you are i n an LMR or b u f f e r zone? 

21 A. No. 

22 Q. And a t t h i s p o i n t i n time, the APDs have s t i l l been 

23 approved? They were never rescinded, i n o t h e r words? 

24 A. That's c o r r e c t . 

25 Q. But we don't have a waiver of wi t h d r a w a l o r 
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1 o b j e c t i o n from I n t r e p i d a t t h i s p o i n t ? 

2 A. C o r r e c t . 

3 Q. Okay. Were E x h i b i t s 3 through 10 e i t h e r prepared by 

4 you or compiled from company business records? 

5 A. Yes. 

6 MS. MUNDS-DRY: Mr. Examiner, we would move the 

7 admission of E x h i b i t s 3 through 10 i n t o evidence. 

8 EXAMINER WARNELL: E x h i b i t s 3 through 10 are 

9 admitted. 

10 ( E x h i b i t s 3 through 10 o f f e r e d and admitted.) 

11 MS. MUNDS-DRY: That concludes my d i r e c t examination 

12 of Mr. Glanton. 

13 EXAMINER WARNELL: Very good. Thank you. 

14 Mr. Brooks? 

15 EXAMINER BROOKS: No qu e s t i o n s . 

16 EXAMINER WARNELL: I have no que s t i o n s . 

17 MS. MUNDS-DRY: We answered a l l your questions? 

18 EXAMINER WARNELL: Uh-huh. 

19 MS. MUNDS-DRY: Thank you. At t h i s time we would 

20 l i k e t o c a l l Mr. D a r y l J. Siepens J r . 

21 DARYL J. SIEPENS JR. 

22 (Having been sworn, t e s t i f i e d as f o l l o w s : ) 

23 DIRECT EXAMINATION 

24 BY MS. MUNDS-DRY: 
25 Q. Would you please s t a t e your f u l l name f o r t he 

PAUL BACA PROFESSIONAL COURT REPORTERS 
4b11 d952-48b5-427b-857d-b62656113f 1 b 



1 record? 
Page 21 

2 A. Da r y l , D-a-r-y-1, J. Siepens, S-i-e-p-e-n-s, J r . 

3 Q • And where do you r e s i d e , Mr. Siepens? 

4 A. Midland, Texas. 

5 Q. And by whom are you employed? 

6 A. EOG Resources. 

7 Q. What do you do f o r EOG? 

8 A. I am, by t i t l e , a geophysical a d v i s o r s l a s h team 

9 leader. My r e s p o n s i b i l i t i e s , I do geophysics as w e l l as 

10 geology. I l e a d the team, which i n c l u d e s from d r i l l i n g t o 

11 the l a n d r e s e r v o i r G&G and supervise the G&G s t a f f f o r our 

12 area. 

13 Q. Have you p r e v i o u s l y t e s t i f i e d b e f o r e t he d i v i s i o n ? 

14 A. Yes, ma'am. 

15 Q. And were your c r e d e n t i a l s accepted and made a matter 

16 of record? 

17 A. Yes, ma'am. 

18 Q. Are you f a m i l i a r w i t h the a p p l i c a t i o n s -- the 

19 a p p l i c a t i o n t h a t ' s been f i l e d i n t h i s case? 

20 A. Yes . 

21 Q. Are you f a m i l i a r w i t h the geology i n the s u b j e c t 

22 area? 

23 A. Yes . 

24 MS. MUNDS-DRY: Mr. Warnell, we would tender 

25 Mr. Siepens as an expert i n petroleum geology and geophysics. 
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1 EXAMINER WARNELL: So recognized. 

2 Q. Mr. Siepens, i f you would t u r n t o what's been marked 

3 as EOG E x h i b i t Number 11 and i d e n t i f y t h a t f o r the Examiners. 

4 A. Yes. E x h i b i t 11 i s j u s t k i n d of -- we are here 

5 about t he issue of potash, and so j u s t t o k i n d o f de s c r i b e 

6 what each map t h a t you w i l l see w i t h r e l a t i v e c onsistency. 

7 S e c t i o n 23 i s a ce n t e r p o i n t w i t h , i n essence, t h a t 

8 nine-square-mile area t h a t we -- the m i l e -- t h i s map 

9 s p e c i f i c a l l y i s the e x i s t i n g w e l l s t h a t are g r e a t e r than 

10 8,000 f e e t deep, c h a r a c t e r i z e d as, quote, deep w e l l s . 

11 Q. And t h a t ' s deep w e l l s pursuant t o R - l l l - B ? 

12 A. Yes, ma'am. Showing two t h i n g s , one i s a 

13 q u a r t e r - m i l e h a l o around each e x i s t i n g borehole shown i n the 

14 r ed open c i r c l e s , and a h a l f - m i l e - r a d i u s h a l o around each of 

15 those same w e l l s shown as t h e shaded orange. I n a d d i t i o n t o 

16 those d e f i n i t i o n s around t he w e l l s , the gray box encompassed 

17 coming from t he n o r t h e a s t , i f you w i l l , across our Se c t i o n 23 

18 w i t h a b u l l e t o u t l i n e , t h a t i s the potash area as put out by 

19 the BLM, and then the p u r p l e l i n e s t h a t look l i k e mine 

20 workings i s the mine workings as a l s o put out by the BLM. 

21 So as we look a t t h i s , we simply see t h a t t h e w e l l s 

22 i n Sections 14, 22, 23, 24 do encroach c u r r e n t l y w i t h q u a r t e r 

23 and h a l f - m i l e r a d i u s on potash and numerous w e l l s , Sections 

24 24, 23, and even up i n 14 a l s o encroach on the mine by the 

25 q u a r t e r - m i l e h a l o . The t h r e e r e d squares are the l o c a t i o n of 
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1 our t h r e e a p p l i c a t i o n s f o r Parkways 2, 3 and 4. 

2 Q. And t h i s a l s o shows -- and I t h i n k we w i l l get t o 

3 t h i s i n a minute -- the w e l l c o n t r o l s you used f o r a 

4 cr o s s - s e c t i o n ? 

5 A. Yes. 

6 Q. Okay. Then i f you would, please, t u r n t o E x h i b i t 

7 Number 12. What does t h i s d i s p l a y ? 

8 A. E x h i b i t Number 12 i s g e t t i n g us c l o s e r t o the 

9 geology and why we are out here. I t ' s got the same gray 

10 shaded area f o r the potash, b u t now i t ' s i n the same deep 

11 w e l l c o n t r o l , but I've done a couple o f t h i n g s . One i s we 

12 l a b e l e d t he w e l l names a t the t o p . We have l a b e l e d below 

13 green h i g h l i g h t e d w e l l s . Those green h i g h l i g h t e d w e l l s 

14 represent Bone Spring producers, and the numbers below i n 

15 red, or -- excuse me -- green, r ed, and blue are Bone Spring 

16 cumes t o date on those w e l l s out of the Bone Spring. This 

17 a l s o i n c l u d e s now our l a n d p o s i t i o n as re f e r e n c e d by 

18 Mr. H u r i b u t e a r l i e r . 

19 Q. I n the yellow? 

20 A. I n the y e l l o w shade. So, f o r s t a r t e r s , yes, we are 

21 l o o k i n g a t t h i s map i n Se c t i o n 23 t h a t Doug had t a l k e d t o the 

22 Sta t e 23-A-l i s 101,000 b a r r e l , past tense, producer out of 

23 the Second Bone Spring Sand, and w e ' l l look a t a 

24 c r o s s - s e c t i o n i n j u s t a moment. 

25 The middle w e l l w i t h no a n n o t a t i o n , the Parkway 23 

sal 
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1 State Com 1, has a surface l o c a t i o n w i t h the bottomhole going 

2 t o the q u a r t e r I mean the 4 0 acres n o r t h of t h a t of a deep 

3 morrow gas w e l l of EOG's from 2004. And the t h i r d w e l l i s 

4 St a t e 23 Com 1, t h a t i s a l s o a w e l l t h a t i s produced from the 

5 Bone Spri n g out of the f i r s t sand i n t e r v a l , past tense, 

6 48,000 b a r r e l s . 

7 So the immediacy of our s e c t i o n and our v e r t i c a l 

8 completion t h a t look t o perform a p p r o p r i a t e and w e l l f o r 

9 t h e i r v i n t a g e and v e r t i c a l completion. To note, t o the south 

10 t h e r e i s Parkwest State 26 Number 1 t h a t ' s got 28,000 b a r r e l 

11 o i l , t h a t i s h o r i z o n t a l as of 2010 v i n t a g e t o the south of 

12 t h i s , as w e l l as the Halcon/Petco f u r t h e r south i n the Bone 

13 Spring. 

14 To the n o r t h i n S e c t i o n 14, v i n t a g e 2009, l a t e 

15 August and December of 2009, are s i m i l a r w e l l s of 30,000 and 

16 23,000. Those represent n o r t h and south f l o w , so la n d and 

17 prospect i n t h a t r e s p e c t i v e s e c t i o n w i t h p r o d u c t i o n t o the 

18 n o r t h and south. 

19 Q. Thank you. I f we c o u l d t u r n t o EOG E x h i b i t Number 

20 13. What i s t h i s showing you? 

21 A. E x h i b i t Number 13 i s a -- i s the c r o s s - s e c t i o n t h a t 

22 we have j u s t k i n d o f t a l k e d through on the w e l l s . I n Se c t i o n 

23 23, from west t o east, showing the upper zone c a l l e d the 

24 F i r s t Bone Spring Sand and h i g h l i g h t e d i n red along the 

25 d e n s i t y curve i s the rock t h a t we f e e l i s p r o s p e c t i v e t h a t i s 
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1 i n f a c t the zone t h a t was completed i n the r i g h t - h a n d Chi 

2 S t a t e 23 w e l l . 

3 The f i r s t w e l l , t h i s lower shows the Second Bone 

4 Spring, and even a d d i t i o n a l l y h i g h l i g h t e d i n orange or r e d 

5 across t h e r e i s a key i n t e r v a l of t h i s sand t h a t we t a r g e t 

6 when we d r i l l e d t h e second sand w e l l . And i n a n n o t a t i o n on 

7 the bottom i s a r e i t e r a t i o n i n a s s o c i a t i o n w i t h the w e l l s as 

8 we j u s t discussed. 

9 Q. And b e f o r e we leave t h i s c r o s s - s e c t i o n , Mr. Glanton 

10 t e s t i f i e d t h a t t h e p r i m a r y o b j e c t i v e i s t h e Bone Spring. And 

11 I take i t from your t e s t i m o n y t h a t i t ' s t h e Second Bone 

12 Spring i n t e r v a l ? 

13 A. Yes, ma'am. Our pri m a r y -- we have d r i l l e d 20 p l u s 

14 w e l l s i n our sand tank area near here, focused on the second 

15 sand, but we a l s o have optimism t h a t we can develop the f i r s t 

16 sand as w e l l . 

17 Q. So the secondary t a r g e t you would be l o o k i n g a t the 

18 f i r s t sand then? 

19 A. Yes. 

2 0 Q. Let's t u r n t o E x h i b i t Number 14. What i s t h i s 

21 d i s p l a y showing you? 

22 A. E x h i b i t Number 14 i s j u s t t h e g e o l o g i c premise w i t h 

23 the p r i m a r y t a r g e t . I t has the same w e l l c o n t r o l . I removed 

24 the potash as t o remove confusion, removed our acreage 

25 p o s i t i o n t o remove confus i o n . The w e l l s w i t h the green dots 
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1 are s t i l l w e l l s of h i s t o r i c Bone Spring p r o d u c t i o n . 

2 What's posted on here i n contour i s the net p o r o s i t y 

3 g r e a t e r than 8 percent s p e c i f i c a l l y of the h i g h l i g h t e d zone 

4 on the c r o s s - s e c t i o n , not of the whole Bone Spring Second 

5 Sand, but t h a t t a r g e t zone. And t h a t i s the zone t h a t 

6 produces i n S e c t i o n 14 i n the Cimerex w e l l , as w e l l as i n 

7 Se c t i o n 26 i n the Lutheran Well, as w e l l as the w e l l t h a t 

8 says 56 f e e t i n S e c t i o n 23 i s a v e r t i c a l . The t h i r d 

9 g e o l o g i c a l l y i s b e t t e r w i t h v o l u m e t r i c r e s e r v o i r . So t h a t ' s 

10 the premise of why we want t o be where we are f o r the Second 

11 Bone Spring. 

12 Q. Great. Let's t u r n t o E x h i b i t 15, please. Review 

13 t h i s f o r the Examiners. 

14 A. This e x h i b i t i s s i m i l a r . I t ' s a gross isopach of 

15 the F i r s t Bone Spring Sand. The w e l l t h a t has a 200-foot 

16 a n n o t a t i o n i s the Bone Spring Well i n p a r t i c u l a r t h a t was i n 

17 f a c t t he F i r s t Bone producer. The w e l l s -- so, anyway, t h i s 

18 t o o shows the p r e d i c t a b i l i t y t h a t t h i s area has the 

19 p r o p e n s i t y f o r t h a t rock being t h i c k i n our l o c a t i o n s i n 

2 0 r e l a t i o n t o t h a t geology. 

21 Q. Okay. Turn t o E x h i b i t 16, please. Review t h i s f o r 

22 the Examiners. 

23 A. I n E x h i b i t 16 i s the s t r u c t u r e map on top of t h a t 

24 f i r s t Bone Spring Sand t h a t we j u s t looked a t as the isopach, 

25 showing t h a t s t r u c t u r a l , i t ' s a g e n e r a l i t y i n S e c t i o n 23. 
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1 Up-dip i s t o the west s l a s h northwest, and down-dip i s t o the 

2 southeast s l a s h east. 

3 Q. A f t e r r e v i e w i n g these isopach and s t r u c t u r a l map, i n 

4 your o p i n i o n , then, are these t h r e e w e l l s proposed i n areas 

5 t h a t w i l l be most b e n e f i c i a l g i v e n your -- g i v e n where you 

6 are i n the formation? 

7 A. Yes, ma'am. 

8 Q. And i f we c o u l d then t u r n back t o E x h i b i t Number 12, 

9 and I wonder i f , f o r the examiners, i f you c o u l d e s t i m a t e how 

10 much o i l and gas c o u l d be produced from these t h r e e w e l l s . 

11 A. Yes. There i s a v a r i e t y of ways of p u r s u i n g t h i s , 

12 going through the d e c l i n e curve, but most of the w e l l s i n 

13 here, save and except the h o r i z o n t a l and d i r e c t i o n a l w e l l s i n 

14 S e c t i o n 14 and S e c t i o n 26, are r e l a t i v e l y o l d , 1989, e a r l y 

15 90s t o present s l a s h or have been plugged. 

16 And so we see 50,000 b a r r e l s . We'll s t a r t from the 

17 F i r s t Sand -- excuse me -- w e ' l l s t a r t w i t h the 23-A-l, 

18 100,000 b a r r e l s . Hundred thousand b a r r e l s out a 4 0-acre 

19 p r o r a t i o n u n i t , simple u p s c a l i n g , we can say we put p r o r a t i o n 

20 use t o g e t h e r , t h a t ' s 400,000 b a r r e l s , we have t h r e e w e l l s , 

21 t h e y each would have the p o t e n t i a l t o a t t a i n t h a t . I would 

22 say t h a t when we t h i n k of t h i s , we t h i n k of 3- t o 400,000 

23 b a r r e l s as a t a r g e t f o r each of these t h r e e w e l l s out of the 

24 Second Sand. 

25 The F i r s t Sand shows 50,000 b a r r e l s , 48,000 b a r r e l s 
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1 i n 23 Number 1. There are o t h e r w e l l s i n t h e r e t h a t have 

2 produced l e s s , and o t h e r w e l l s t h a t produce s l i g h t l y more. 

3 Again simple round math, you c o u l d say 50,000 per 40, f o u r 

4 4 0s, we ought t o be a couple hundred thousand, so we are 

5 u s i n g 150 up, o p t i m i s t i c a l l y , up t o 200,000 b a r r e l s per 

6 p r o j e c t area per w e l l , and t h a t does not account f o r s i m i l a r 

7 s i g n i f i c a n t volumes as w e l l . 

8 Q. Now, i f you look a t the more r e c e n t l y d r i l l e d 

9 h o r i z o n t a l w e l l s , how does t h a t b l e n d then i n t o your 

10 estimate? 

11 A. These kinds o f estimates are c o n s i s t e n t w i t h numbers 

12 t h a t we have s u b s t a n t i a l l y s i m i l a r i n Sand Tank, but a l s o the 

13 w e l l s i n S e c t i o n 23 have a m u l t i 20-year h i s t o r y - i s h . The 

14 w e l l s t o the n o r t h have a 12- and 18-month h i s t o r y , and they 

15 are a l r e a d y approaching 30,000 b a r r e l s or more. The Parkway 

16 w e l l t o the south has got a six-month h i s t o r y , and i t ' s 

17 a l r e a d y a t almost 30,000 b a r r e l s . So i t ' s a l r e a d y a c h i e v i n g 

18 i n the l a s t s i x months long-term p r o d u c t i o n of those o t h e r 

19 w e l l s . 

20 Q. I f t h i s a p p l i c a t i o n i s denied, then, i n your 

21 o p i n i o n , w i l l i t cause the undue waste of o i l and gas? 

22 A. I b e l i e v e so, yes. 

23 Q. W i l l the g r a n t i n g of t h i s a p p l i c a t i o n , i n your 

24 o p i n i o n , cause the undue waste of potash? 

25 A. I f you go t o E x h i b i t 11, I t h i n k -- i s n ' t t h a t 
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1 r i g h t ? This one, i s t h a t E x h i b i t 11? 

2 Q. Yeah. 

3 A. P r e d i c a t e d on the e x i s t e n c e of e x i s t i n g w e l l s and 

4 the p o s i t i o n of our l o c a t i o n s r e l a t i v e t o e x i s t i n g boreholes, 

5 I would say no. As w e l l as, based on c o n v e r s a t i o n t h a t Donny 

6 t a l k e d about w i t h Mr. McGuire a t Potash, he i n d i c a t e d t h a t 

7 t h i s was a p o s i t i o n l i n e t h a t was not p a r t i c u l a r l y f a v o r a b l e 

8 f o r s o l u t i o n mining, although t h a t ' s an emerging technology. 

9 And so, again, I would say I don't t h i n k i t ' s a waste. 

10 Q. So i f I understand you c o r r e c t l y , what we are 

11 showing here on t h i s -- on t h i s e x h i b i t i s t h a t the m a j o r i t y 

12 of t h i s 23 has a l r e a d y been -- i f t h e r e i s -- assuming t h e r e 

13 i s commercial potash, which we don't know, t h a t i t ' s a l r e a d y 

14 been wasted by the e x i s t i n g o i l and gas development? 

15 A. Or damaged, a t l e a s t , made worse, so yes. 

16 Q. We're not c o n t r i b u t i n g any f u r t h e r . And then 

17 your -- Mr. Glanton had mentioned you were a l s o t h e r e a t the 

18 meeting w i t h Mr. McGuire, and he had mentioned t o you t h a t 

19 s t r u c t u r a l l y these l o c a t i o n s are up-dip? 

20 A. Yes. 

21 Q. Meaning a s o l u t i o n runs d o w n h i l l , i f I understand 

22 c o r r e c t l y , i n my simple way of mind? 

23 A. R i g h t . And c o n s i s t e n t w i t h some of the 

24 correspondence t h a t they sent back, t h e y had a map of the 

2 5 mines and --
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1 Q. Okay. I n your o p i n i o n , Mr. Siepens, w i l l t h e 

2 g r a n t i n g o f t h i s a p p l i c a t i o n be i n the best i n t e r e s t o f 

3 c o n s e r v a t i o n and the p r e v e n t i o n o f waste and p r o t e c t i o n o f 

4 r e l a t i v e r i g h t s ? 

5 A. Yes, ma'am. 

6 MS. MUNDS-DRY: With t h a t , Mr. Examiner, we would 

7 move t h e admission o f E x h i b i t s 11 t h r o u g h 16 i n t o evidence. 

8 EXAMINER WARNELL: E x h i b i t s 11 th r o u g h 16 a d m i t t e d . 

9 ( E x h i b i t s 11 th r o u g h 16 o f f e r e d and admitted.) 

10 MS. MUNDS-DRY: I have n o t h i n g f u r t h e r . 

11 EXAMINER WARNELL: Thank you. Mr. Brooks? 

12 EXAMINER BROOKS: No q u e s t i o n s . 

13 EXAMINATION 

14 BY EXAMINER WARNELL: 

15 Q. I have a q u e s t i o n , I guess, on -- l e t ' s j u s t s t a y 

16 w i t h -- s t a y w i t h E x h i b i t 11. 

17 A. Okay. 

18 Q. Your t h r e e w e l l s --

19 A. Yes. 

2 0 Q. -- t h e r e d boxes, t h a t ' s t h e bottomhole l o c a t i o n ? 

21 A. That i s s u r f a c e l o c a t i o n . 

22 Q. Surface l o c a t i o n . So then t h e bottomhole l o c a t i o n s 

23 are over where? 

24 A. To t h e f a r r i g h t . 

25 Q. To the east? 
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1 A. Co r r e c t . 

2 Q. And i f we were t o number these w e l l s , i s t h a t the 2H 

3 on top? 

4 A. Yes, s i r . 

5 Q. And then 3H and 4H? 

6 A. Co r r e c t . 

7 Q. I l i k e t h a t . Good. And then the potash mine 

8 i t s e l f , what k i n d of depths are we l o o k i n g a t on t h a t mine? 

9 A. I t i s our understanding t a l k i n g t o Mr. Joe Miraz, 

10 t h a t fundamental potash i s pr o b a b l y l i k e i n the 800- t o 

11 12-hundred-foot range. I n t h i s area, we're not 10 0 percent 

12 sure because of the -- i t seems l i k e l a c k of a v a i l a b l e 

13 i n f o r m a t i o n . 

14 Q. So the f l o o r of t h a t mine t h e r e i s p r o b a b l y i n the 

15 neighborhood of 12 hundred f e e t ? 

16 A. That's what we're surmising. We don't know e x a c t l y 

17 what I b e l i e v e i s Zone 126 USGS, t h i s footage i s s p e c i f i c t o 

18 here, but yes, t h a t ' s what we are sur m i s i n g . 

19 Q. And we are t a l k i n g about depths of what, 8,000 f e e t 

20 f o r t he Second Bone Spring? 

21 A. Co r r e c t . 

22 EXAMINER WARNELL: No more q u e s t i o n s . 

23 MS. MUNDS-DRY: Thank you. I c a l l Mr. Munsell. 

24 EXAMINER WARNELL: Do you want t o take a break? 

25 EXAMINER BROOKS: Yeah. 
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1 MS. MUNDS-DRY: Whatever your pleasure. 

2 EXAMINER WARNELL: Let's take a ten-minute break. 

3 (Recess taken.) 

4 EXAMINER WARNELL: Okay. Let's go back on the 

5 r e c o r d w i t h Case 14548. 

6 MS. MUNDS-DRY: Thank you, Mr. Examiner. 

7 STEVE L. MUNSELL 

8 (Having been sworn, t e s t i f i e d as f o l l o w s : ) 

9 DIRECT EXAMINATION 

10 BY MS. MUNDS-DRY: 

11 Q. Would you please s t a t e your f u l l name f o r the 

12 record? 

13 A. Yes, ma'am. My name i s Steve L. Munsell, 

14 M-u-n-s-e-1-1. 

15 Q. And Mr. Munsell, where do you reside? 

16 A. Midland, Texas. 

17 Q. And by whom are you employed? 

18 A. EOG Resources. 

19 Q. What i s your p o s i t i o n w i t h EOG? 

20 A. I am a d r i l l i n g engineer. 

21 Q. Have you p r e v i o u s l y t e s t i f i e d b e fore the D i v i s i o n ? 

22 A. No, ma'am, I have n o t . 

23 Q. Would you please review f o r the Examiners your 

24 education and work h i s t o r y ? 

25 A. Yes. I graduated i n 1981 w i t h a bachelor of science 
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1 i n pe t r o l e u m e n g i n e e r i n g from Texas Tech, and a t t h a t time 

2 went t o work f o r Mobile O i l . Worked f o r -- u n t i l 2000 f o r 

3 Mobile O i l , and since t h a t t i m e I've worked f o r P i e r 

4 Resources, Combrown I n c o r p o r a t e d , and EOG Resources as a 

5 d r i l l i n g engineer. 

6 Q. And are you a r e g i s t e r e d p r o f e s s i o n a l engineer? 

7 A. I am n o t . 

8 Q. A petroleum engineer? 

9 A. Yes, ma'am. 

10 MS. MUNDS-DRY: Mr. Wa r n e l l , we would move t o 

11 q u a l i f y Mr. Munsell as an e x p e r t i n petroleum engineer. 

12 EXAMINER WARNELL: Texas Tech? I t ' s a l l r i g h t . 

13 MS. MUNDS-DRY: Acceptable? 

14 EXAMINER WARNELL: Sure. 

15 Q. (By Ms. Munds-Dry) Mr. Munsel l , i f you t u r n t o 

16 what's been marked as EOG Number 17. 

17 A. Yes, ma'am. 

18 Q. And i d e n t i f y and review, i s t h i s t h e w e l l b o r e s 

19 proposed and approved by t h e APD s u b m i t t e d J u l y o f 2009? 

20 A. Yes, ma'am. These are e s s e n t i a l l y j u s t w e l l b o r e 

21 diagrams t h a t show how t h e w e l l w i l l be d r i l l e d as per the 

22 approved APD. 

23 Q. I s t h i s f o r t he 2H? 
24 A. Thi s i s f o r t he 2H, as w e l l as the 3H, and t h e 4H, 

25 which are v e r y s i m i l a r . The o n l y t h i n g t h a t ' s g oing t o be a 

PAUL BACA PROFESSIONAL COURT REPORTERS 
4b 11 d952-48b5-427b-857d-b62656113f1 b 



Page 34 

1 l i t t l e b i t d i f f e r e n t i s maybe the s u r f a c e casing depths and 

2 a l s o two k i c k o f f p o i n t s and a c t u a l l y no l a n d i n g p o i n t s . 

3 Q. Thank you. Go ahead and review f o r the r e c o r d 

4 what -- where i s the surface casing you proposed t o be set 

5 at? 

6 A. Okay. I t h i n k on the APD, I t h i n k i t was o r i g i n a l l y 

7 360 f e e t , and a f t e r doing a l i t t l e more research, i t w i l l be 

8 set more l i k e a t 310 f e e t , but we w i l l be s e t t i n g our casing 

9 b e f o r e we get i n t o the s a l t , i f i t comes t o t h a t p o i n t . 

10 E s s e n t i a l l y , you know, the way t h a t the w e l l b o r e s are going 

11 t o be d r i l l e d , i s we w i l l s t a r t out by s e t t i n g out 20-inch 

12 conductor a t 40 f e e t , and then w e ' l l d r i l l w i t h a f r e s h w a t e r 

13 spud mud down t o our surface casing p o i n t , be approximately 

14 310 f e e t or so. 

15 And then a f t e r we do t h a t , then we w i l l be f i l l i n g 

16 the i n t e r m e d i a t e s e c t i o n of the h o l e t o 33 hundred f e e t 

17 s e t t i n g our p i p e a t the top of San Andres and t h a t w i l l case 

18 o f f the s a l t t h e r e . And then a f t e r we d r i l l out a t t h a t 

19 p o i n t , we w i l l be d r i l l i n g w i t h f r e s h water, and then 

2 0 changing over t o cut brown by the time we get t o a TD of 

21 a p p r o x i m a t e l y 84 hundred TBD i n the p i l o t h o l e . 

22 And a t t h a t p o i n t we w i l l run open-hole l o g s , and 

23 then w e ' l l determine whether we want t o go sideways. And a t 

24 t h a t p o i n t w e ' l l p l u g back v i a cement p l u g s , k i c k o f f , and we 

25 w i l l be k i c k i n g o f f a t approximately 75-hundred-foot TBD, and 
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1 l a n d i n g the curve a t -- r i g h t a t 8,000-foot TBD and d r i l l i n g 

2 our doing 4,000-foot l a t e r a l . 

3 Q. And E x h i b i t 18, I b e l i e v e -- and 19 -- I b e l i e v e you 

4 i n d i c a t e d E x h i b i t 18 i s the w e l l b o r e diagram f o r the 3H; i s 

5 t h a t c o r r e c t ? 

6 A. Yes, ma'am. 

7 Q. And the E x h i b i t 19 i s the w e l l b o r e diagram f o r the 

8 4H? 

9 A. Yes, ma'am. 

10 Q. And what are the d i f f e r e n c e s , i f any, between how 

11 these w e l l s w i l l be d r i l l e d from t he 2H? 

12 A. Just mo s t l y -- of course, t h e r e w i l l always be a 

13 l i t t l e d i f f e r e n c e i n the surfac e o r the s e t t i n g p o i n t s as f a r 

14 as the casing, as f a r as the, you know, p l u s o r minus 45 f e e t 

15 o r so, but the o n l y o t h e r d i f f e r e n c e s are p r e t t y much the 

16 k i c k - o f f p o i n t s and where the l a t e r a l s are going t o be. 

17 Q. And I want t o t a l k t o you about the p r o x i m i t y t o the 

18 abandoned mine. Maybe i f we cou l d t u r n t o -- do you have 

19 E x h i b i t 11 t h e r e i n f r o n t of you, j u s t so we can reference i t 

2 0 f o r the Examiners. I have t o f i n d i t , t o o . I n your o p i n i o n , 

21 Mr. Munsell, w i l l these w e l l s cause any r i s k t o t h a t e x i s t i n g 

22 abandoned mine? 

23 A. No, ma'am, I don't t h i n k t h e y w i l l . 

24 Q. And I n o t i c e here i n p a r t i c u l a r , t h e second box, 

25 which I b e l i e v e i s 3H --

PAUL BACA PROFESSIONAL COURT REPORTERS 
4b11 d952-48b5-427b-857d-b62656113f1 b 



Page 36 

1 A. Yes, ma'am. 

2 Q. - - i s t h a t c o r r e c t ? I f you c o u l d e x p l a i n t o the 

3 Examiners how f a r away you b e l i e v e you w i l l be away from t h a t 

4 e x i s t i n g mine and maybe discuss a l i t t l e b i t about how long 

5 i t takes t o b u i l d your curve and t h a t s o r t of t h i n g . 

6 A. I b e l i e v e we are going t o be 6 7 hundred f o o t away 

7 from those -- from where i t ' s showing the open mine a t t h a t 

8 p o i n t . And, you know, whenever we a c t u a l l y d r i l l the t h i n g , 

9 of course, we w i l l have the d i r e c t t o o l s i n the hole from the 

10 get-go t o make c e r t a i n t h a t we s t a y v e r y s t r a i g h t u n t i l we 

11 get past the s a l t s , which are approximately 14 hundred f o o t 

12 TBD, and then as, you know, once we get down t o the -- r i g h t 

13 above the Bone Springs where we k i c k o f f where we w i l l be --

14 w e ' l l a c t u a l l y be l a n d i n g l i k e 66 hundred f e e t below the 

15 mine, so t h a t ' s p r e t t y much the p l a n . 

16 Q. Okay. W i l l EOG p r o v i d e n o t i c e of the d r i l l i n g of 

17 these w e l l s so i t can be witnessed by Potash r e p r e s e n t a t i v e s 

18 i f t h e y so choose t o assure i t s d r i l l i n g i n conformance w i t h 

19 the approved APDs? 

2 0 A. Yes, ma'am. 

21 Q. And were E x h i b i t s 17 through 19 e i t h e r prepared by 

22 you or compiled under your d i r e c t s u p e r v i s i o n ? 

23 A. Yes, ma'am. 
24 MS. MUNDS-DRY: Mr. Warnell, we move t o admit 

25 E x h i b i t s 17 through 19. 
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1 EXAMINER WARNELL: E x h i b i t s 17 through 19 are 

2 admitted. 

3 ( E x h i b i t s 17 through 19 o f f e r e d and admitted.) 

4 MS. MUNDS-DRY: That concludes my d i r e c t examination 

5 of Mr. Munsell. 

6 EXAMINER WARNELL: .1 don't know why we took t h a t 

7 break. 

8 EXAMINER BROOKS: I don't know. I t was a bad 

9 d e c i s i o n . 

10 EXAMINER WARNELL: I apolo g i z e . 

11 MS. MUNDS-DRY: We can ask him about the weather, i f 

12 you would l i k e . 

13 EXAMINER WARNELL: No. They p r o b a b l y l i k e t o brag 

14 about Midland weather t h i s time of year. Any que s t i o n s , 

15 b a s i c a l l y ? 

16 EXAMINER BROOKS: No que s t i o n s . 

17 EXAMINER WARNELL: No questions? 

18 EXAMINATION 

19 BY EXAMINER WARNELL: 

20 Q. Well, Mr. Munsell, I'm not going t o l e t you o f f t h a t 

21 easy. This i s the o p p o r t u n i t y f o r me t o educate myself a b i t 

22 on d r i l l i n g . I am not a d r i l l i n g engineer. A f t e r you set 

23 t h a t p i p e , your s u r f a c e casing a t 310 f e e t ? 

24 A. Yes, s i r . 

25 Q. And then you d r i l l through about a thousand f e e t of 
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1 s a l t or so? 

2 A. Yes, s i r . I n the -- the base of s a l t i s about 1,400 

3 f e e t . 

4 Q. Uh-huh. How many days of d r i l l i n g time i s t h a t ? 

5 How do you -- what 1s your mud program? What do you do when 

6 you go through t h a t s a l t ? 

7 A. When we d r i l l t h a t e n t i r e s e c t i o n of the hole from 

8 the surface casing p o i n t t o TD, i t w i l l be w i t h s a t u r a t e d 

9 brown water, and t h a t , and a l s o u s i n g sweeps t o help clean 

10 the h o l e . 

11 Q. And so t h a t h o le stays p r e t t y w e l l engaged going 

12 through t h a t s a l t ? 

13 A. Yes, s i r . And n o r m a l l y nowadays we are d r i l l i n g 

14 these w e l l s w i t h PVC, so t h i s s e c t i o n of the hole d r i l l s 

15 r e a l l y f a s t . I n l i k e two days w e ' l l -- w e ' l l be d r i l l e d 

16 through t h i s s e c t i o n and p r e - r u n n i n g casing. 

17 Q. Wow. And then once you d r i l l your l a t e r a l a t 4,000 

18 f e e t , how -- how are you going t o complete t h a t ? 

19 A. Well, n o r m a l l y t h e y ' r e , you know, f r a c t u r e 

20 s t i m u l a t e d , and n o r m a l l y , you know, 10 t o 12 stages and 

21 p r e t t y much j u s t water and sand. 

22 Q. That's a p r e t t y expensive f r a c ? 

23 A. Yes, s i r . 

24 Q. Frac j o b , I mean. 
2 5 A. And v e r y busy. Nowadays i t ' s j u s t hard t o get --
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1 the s u r f a c e companies are l i n e d up j u s t months down the road 

2 because of t h e i r schedule. 

3 Q. Yeah. They are p r o b a b l y p r e t t y happy about t h a t . 

4 They l i k e t h a t . So f r a c k i n g gets a bum wrap. Every time I 

5 t u r n on the TV, I see about f r a c k i n g . Are t h e r e any n a t u r a l 

6 f r a c t u r e s out here? I s t h e r e any -- any way, you know -- we 

7 are here i n t h i s l a t e r a l about, what, 6,000 f e e t below? 

8 A. 65 f e e t below the base o f s a l t , yes, s i r . 

9 Q. How do we assure ourselves t h a t we are not going t o 

10 be f r a c k i n g up i n t o the mine i t s e l f ? 

11 A. Well, you know, I t h i n k t h a t t h a t ' s something t h a t , 

12 you know, based o f f the -- you know, we do a l o t of p i n n a c l e 

13 surveys, and he k i n d o f helps me w i t h t h i s . 

14 MS. MUNDS-DRY: Mr. Siepens can t a l k a l i t t l e b i t 

15 more about t h a t , t o o . 

16 MR. SiepensS: Can we tag-team? 

17 MS. MUNDS-DRY: We should p r o b a b l y r e c a l l --

18 A. Not a l l of our f r a c t u r e s t i m u l a t i o n s , but a l o t of 

19 those s t i m u l a t i o n s , and, you know, n o r m a l l y we are seeing, 

20 you know, f r a c h e i g h t s of maybe, you know, 3- t o 400 f e e t , 

21 but I don't t h i n k we have ever seen a n y t h i n g t h a t ' s gone, you 

22 know, over a thousand f e e t o r so. And you know 60, 66 

2 3 hundred f e e t , I don't t h i n k would -- I t h i n k the p r o b a b i l i t y 

24 of t h a t would almost be zero. I n my o p i n i o n . 

25 Q. Do you have a good n a t u r a l b a r r i e r up t h e r e some 
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1 place between your l a t e r a l and --

2 A. Yes, s i r , we do. 

3 Q. What i s t h a t ? 

4 A. I would say t h a t here i t would be the Bone Spring 

5 would be p r o b a b l y our best b a r r i e r . 

6 Q. Okay. 

7 EXAMINER WARNELL: I have no more qu e s t i o n s . 

8 MS. MUNDS-DRY: Do you want t o ask some questions of 

9 Mr. Siepens about -- or are you s a t i s f i e d w i t h --

10 EXAMINER WARNELL: Let's b r i n g Mr. Siepens back. 

11 MR. SIEPENS: I shouldn't have o f f e r e d . 

12 FURTHER EXAMINATION OF DARYL SIEPENS, JR. 

13 BY EXAMINER WARNELL: 

14 Q. I t ' s a slow morning. You can't go Christmas 

15 shopping a l l day. So, Mr. Siepens, what i s i t t h a t you wish 

16 t o t e l l me? 

17 A. Well, you requested -- n o t h i n g , i f you have n o t h i n g . 

18 No, you were i n q u i r i n g as f a r as the f r a c . No, 

19 g e o t e c h n i c a l l y , t h i s s p e c i f i c area does not have any 

20 deep-seated f a u l t s coming up through t h i s s e c t i o n f o r a f r a c 

21 t o hook i n t o and come up. And you know, the stratcom i s 

22 above us, so we w i l l -- the mining, t he mine works, so i t ' s 

23 l i k e 14 hundred i s the base of them, b u t , yeah, you have t he 

24 Delaware s e c t i o n t o which, i n f a c t , one of the previou s cases 

25 was d e s c r i b i n g . But, yeah, we have l i k e 13 hundred t o 17 
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1 hundred f e e t of the Upper Bone Spring Dolomite -- I mean, not 

2 dolom i t e -- we have carbonate above our F i r s t Sand i t s e l f 

3 t h a t ' s t y p i c a l l y -- so t h a t i s a l s o the b a r r i e r t o the f r a c . 

4 As a g e n e r a l i t y , Mr. Munsell t a l k e d of the j o b t h a t 

5 we had monitored went downhole as w e l l as surfac e technology 

6 f o r f r a c j o b s . The jobs are g e n e r a l l y c o n t a i n e d t h a t t h e r e 

7 i s no quicksand o r n a t u r a l g e o l o g i c f e a t u r e s t h a t would take 

8 us t h a t h i g h . 

9 Q. So on your f r a c h e i g h t , you wouldn't expect t o go 

10 above? 

11 A. Well, i n the f i r s t Bone Spring Sand s p e c i f i c , i f we 

12 were f r a c k i n g t h a t zone on the c r o s s - s e c t i o n we would stay, 

13 i n g e n e r a l , v i r t u a l l y c o n t r o l l e d t o t a l l y c o n t a i n e d i n t h a t 

14 and not above. The second zone down deep, i t may get up as 

15 h i g h as the f i r s t , b ut i t stays f a i r l y c ontained, but i t w i l l 

16 go f u r t h e r i n t o t h e 

17 Q. Okay. Well, thank you. I a p p r e c i a t e t h a t . No 

18 f u r t h e r q u e s t i o n s . 

19 MS. MUNDS-DRY: Thank you. We have n o t h i n g f u r t h e r 

20 i n t h i s matter. 

21 EXAMINER WARNELL: Okay. Would you e n t e r t a i n t h e 

22 p o s s i b i l i t y of g i v i n g me a d r a f t on t h i s sometime i n the next 

23 week? 

24 MS. MUNDS-DRY: I would be more t han p leased t o g i v e 

25 you a proposed o r d e r . ' w® *°Y <*«***•>; ry the foregofop is 

ft®aM hy me oa 
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1 EXAMINER WARNELL: Thank you. W i t h t h a t , t h e n w e ' l l 

2 t a k e case Number 14584 w i l l be t a k e n u n d e r a d v i s e m e n t , and 

3 t h a t c o n c l u d e s t o d a y ' s h e a r i n g s . 

4 EXAMINER BROOKS: We w i l l s t a n d a d j o u r n e d . 

5 ( A d j o u r n e d 09:52 a.m.) 
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